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General information about the academic discipline
	Name of the academic discipline
	Foreign Economic Activity

	Code and name of speciality
	D3 "Management"

	Level of higher education
	First (bachelor's) level of higher education

	Status of the discipline
	Optional 

	Number of credits and hours
	3 credits / 90 hours
Lectures 
Seminar classes: 
Independent work by students: 

	Terms of study
	

	Language of instruction
	Ukrainian

	Type of final assessment
	Test

	Course page on the website
	



General information about the lecturer. Contact information.
	Kryvoberets Marina Mykolaivna

	Academic degree
	Candidate of Economic Sciences

	Academic title
	Associate Professor

	Position
	Head of the Department of Tourism Management

	Subjects taught
	Introduction to the Speciality "Management"; Management of Foreign Economic Activity


	Areas of scientific research
	Management, international tourism, economics, innovative approaches to enterprise management

	Links to registers of identifiers for scientists
	ORCID: https://orcid.org/0000-0001-5229-2672
Google Scholar: https://scholar.google.com.ua/citations?user=b9OiTccAAAAJ&hl=uk&oi=sra

	Teacher contact information:
	Teacher's contact information:

	E-mail:
	marina_krivoberets@ukr.net

	Contact telephone number
	+380955208848

	Teacher's portfolio on the website of the department / institute / academy
	https://maup.com.ua/ua/pro-akademiyu/instituti/institut-ekonomiki/kafedra-organizacii-turistichnoi-diyalnosti1/krivoberec.html




Course description. Foreign economic activity (FEA) of Ukrainian economic entities is of particular importance in the current conditions. Therefore, highly qualified FEAD managers must have the knowledge and skills to work in the international market for the successful implementation of FEAD. The study of the course "Foreign Economic Activity" meets the needs of enterprises and organisations for specialists who can carry out production, currency and financial, trade and economic activities in the foreign market. This course provides the necessary knowledge for future specialists who are involved in creating the export potential of enterprises. "Foreign Economic Activity of Enterprises" is a normative discipline, and the mastery of the main topics of the course is aimed at forming students' theoretical knowledge and practical skills in making management decisions regarding the implementation of foreign economic activity, its effectiveness and features of legal regulation, as well as to acquire practical skills in solving a range of economic problems faced by domestic enterprises in foreign markets; to develop students' abilities to diagnose problems related to the implementation of foreign economic activity and their solutions.
The aim of teaching the discipline "Foreign Economic Activity" is to master the theoretical foundations of foreign economic activity (FEA); to acquire systematic knowledge and skills to ensure the economic efficiency of FEA of enterprises in various fields of activity. The main objectives in the teaching of the discipline are aimed at understanding the essence and specifics of the mechanism of functioning of foreign economic activity in Ukraine at the present stage, studying the regulatory framework for regulating the foreign economic activity of enterprises, the ability to analyse and evaluate trends, the expediency of determining the main directions of foreign economic activity for enterprises of various forms of ownership, which are subjects of foreign economic activity, researching the specifics of introducing various forms of entry into foreign markets, studying the basic procedures for concluding foreign economic contracts, the ability to evaluate and draw appropriate conclusions regarding the effectiveness of concluded agreements, and the foreign economic activity of the enterprise as a whole.
Prerequisites for the academic discipline. The study of the academic discipline "Foreign Economic Activity" is based on the knowledge and skills acquired by students at the bachelor's level, namely:  international economic relations, marketing, logistics.
Post-requisites of the academic discipline.   The knowledge and skills acquired by students in the process of studying the academic discipline "Foreign Economic Activity" contribute to the successful study by higher education students of a whole range of other academic disciplines aimed at forming professional knowledge and skills: business planning and start-up creation, project management, business management, change management. 

Course content (full-time study)

	No.
	Topic
	Teaching methods/assessment methods

	Content module 1. "Theoretical foundations of foreign economic activity"
	Teaching methods: verbal (lecture; conversation; educational discussion); 
inductive method; deductive method; 
analytical method; synthetic method; 
practical (working with economic models, statistical data, graphs); 
explanatory and illustrative; reproductive; 
problem-based method; 
partial-search; 
research; 
interactive methods (analysis of economic situations; discussions, debates; brainstorming; situational modelling; modelling skills practice); 
case method (analysis of real economic situations, problem identification, proposal of solutions, model building); 
modelling of professional activity (building economic models, forecasting, scenario modelling).

Assessment methods: oral assessment (oral questioning, assessment of participation in discussions and other interactive teaching methods); written assessment (tests, independent work, analytical tasks, essays); 
test assessment (closed-form tests: multiple-choice tests, matching tests, data and model analysis tasks); self-assessment and self-evaluation method; 
case study assessment; 
assessment of project and laboratory work (modelling of economic processes, forecasting).

	Topic 1.
	The essence, types, principles and methods of foreign economic activity management.
	

	Topic 2.
	General characteristics and main directions of development of foreign economic activity in Ukraine.
	

	Topic 3
	System of regulation of foreign economic activity.
	

	Topic 4
	Customs and tariff system for regulating export and import operations.
	

	Topic 5
	National taxes in the sphere of foreign economic activity.
	

	Content module 2. "Organisation of foreign economic activity management at enterprises"
	

	Topic 6.
	Non-tariff methods of regulating foreign economic activity.
	

	Topic 7. 
	Currency regulation of foreign economic activity.
	

	Topic 8.
	Organisation of foreign economic activity management at enterprises.
	

	Topic 9.
	Forms and strategies for enterprises to enter foreign markets.
	

	Topic 10.
	Adaptation of commercial activities of intermediary enterprises Foreign economic contracts: types, structure. Basic terms of delivery of goods.
	

	
	
	

	Modular test

	Form of assessment: test



Technical equipment and/or software. The educational process uses classrooms, a library, a multimedia projector and a computer for lectures and seminars with presentation elements. Studying individual topics and completing practical tasks requires access to information from the global Internet, which is provided by a free Wi-Fi network.
Forms of assessment.
The assessment of students' academic performance is divided into current and final (semester) assessments.
Ongoing assessment is carried out during practical and seminar classes. Its purpose is to systematically check:
- understanding and assimilation of the theoretical foundations of economic processes;
- the ability to apply knowledge to build models and analyse economic data;
- skills in diagnosing and forecasting economic processes;
- use of specialised software for modelling and processing statistical data.
Forms of student participation in the educational process that are subject to ongoing monitoring:
- speeches and presentations on the analysis of economic processes;
- oral reports on the analysis of economic cases;
- additions, questions to the person responsible;
- systematic work in seminars and active participation in discussions;
- participation in discussions, brainstorming, interactive forms of classes;
- analysis of economic data, statistical indicators, economic and mathematical models;
- written assignments (tests, quizzes, analytical and review papers);
- preparation of notes, abstracts, analytical notes;
- independent study of course topics and lecture materials.
Methods of ongoing assessment:
- oral assessment (questionnaires, discussions, reports, presentations);
- written assessment (tests, analytical reports, essays, model building or statistics processing tasks);
- combined assessment (oral and written combination to assess understanding and practical skills);
- presentation of independent work or case analysis;
- observation of activity and participation in practical classes;
- test assessment (closed and open tasks, analysis of graphs and models);
- working with problem situations (analytical cases, scenario modelling of economic processes).

Assessment system and requirements.
Table of points awarded to higher education applicants*

	Topics
	
Ongoing assessment
	Final assessment
	

	
	
	Modular test 
	Credit**
	Total number of points

	
	Topic 1
	Topic 2
	Topic 3
	Topic 4
	Topic 5
	Topic 6
	Topic 7
	Topic 8
	Topic 9
	Topic 10
	

20
	

20
	

100

	Seminar work
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	
	
	

	Independent work
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	3
	
	
	



*The table contains information about the maximum points for each type of academic work of a higher education applicant.
When assessing the mastery of each topic for the current academic activity, students are given grades based on the approved assessment criteria for the relevant discipline.
The criteria for assessing the learning outcomes of students and the distribution of points they receive are regulated by the Regulations on the Assessment of Academic Achievement of Higher Education Students at PJSC "Higher Education Institution "MAUP".
Modular control is carried out in the last class of the module in written form, in the form of a test.
Criteria for assessing the modular test in the academic discipline "Foreign Economic Activity":
When assessing the modular test, the volume and correctness of the tasks are taken into account:
- a grade of "excellent" (A) is given for the correct completion of all tasks (or more than 90% of all tasks);
- a "good" (B) grade is given for the completion of 80% of all tasks;
- a "good" (C) grade is given for completing 70% of all tasks;
- a "satisfactory" (D) grade is given for the correct completion of 60% of the proposed tasks;
- a grade of "satisfactory" (E) is given for the correct completion of more than 50% of the tasks;
- A grade of "unsatisfactory" (FX) is given if less than 50% of the tasks are completed.
Failure to attend the module test results in 0 points.
The above grades are converted into rating points as follows:
"A" - 18-20 points;
"B" - 16-17 points;
"C" - 14-15 points;
"D" - 12-13 points.
"E" - 10-11 points;
"FX" - less than 10 points.
The final semester assessment in the discipline "Foreign Economic Activity" is a mandatory form of assessing students' learning outcomes. It is conducted within the time frame specified in the curriculum and covers the scope of material specified in the course programme.
The final assessment is conducted in the form of a test. Students who have completed all the necessary work are admitted to the semester assessment.
The final assessment is based on the student's academic performance throughout the semester. The student's assessment consists of points accumulated from the results of the current assessment and bonus points.
Students who have completed all the necessary tasks and received a grade of 60 points or higher receive a grade corresponding to the grade received, without additional testing.
For students who have completed all the necessary tasks but received a grade below 60 points, as well as for those who wish to improve their score (result), the teacher conducts a final assessment in the form of a test during the last scheduled class of the discipline in the academic semester.
Assessment of additional (individual) types of educational activities. Assessment of additional (individual) types of educational activities. Additional (individual) types of educational activities include the participation of students in scientific conferences, scientific circles of students and problem groups, preparation of publications, participation in All-Ukrainian Olympiads and competitions and international competitions, etc., in addition to the tasks set by the relevant work programme of the academic discipline. 
By decision of the department, applicants who have participated in research work and performed certain types of additional (individual) types of educational activities may be awarded incentive (bonus) points for a specific educational component.
Assessment of independent work
The total number of points received by a student for independent work is one of the components of academic performance in the discipline. Independent work on each topic, in accordance with the course programme, is assessed on a scale of 0 to 3 points using standardised and generalised criteria for assessing knowledge.
Assessment scale for independent work (individual assignments)
assessment criteria.
	Maximum possible grade for independent work (individual assignments)
	Level of performance

	
	Excellent
	Good
	Satisfactory
	Unsatisfactory

	3
	3
	2
	1
	0


Assessment forms include: ongoing assessment of practical work; ongoing assessment of knowledge acquisition based on oral responses, reports, presentations and other forms of participation during practical (seminar) classes; individual or group projects that require the development of practical skills and competencies (optional format); solving situational tasks; preparing summaries of independently studied topics; testing or written exams; preparation of draft articles, conference abstracts and other publications; other forms that ensure comprehensive mastery of the curriculum and contribute to the gradual development of skills for effective independent professional (practical, scientific and theoretical) activity at a high level.
A 100-point, national and ECTS assessment scale is used to assess the learning outcomes of higher education students during the semester
Final assessment scale: national and ECTS
	Total points for all types of educational activities
	ECTS assessment
	Assessment on the national scale

	
	
	for exams, course projects (assignments), practical training
	for credit

	90
	A
	excellent
	Pass

	82
	B
	Good
	

	75
	C
	
	

	68 – 74
	D
	Satisfactory
	

	60
	E
	
	

	35
	F
	unsatisfactory with the possibility of retaking
	Not counted with the possibility of retaking

	0
	F
	unsatisfactory with mandatory retake of the course
	not credited with mandatory retaking of the course



Course policy. 
For successful completion of the course "Foreign Economic Activity", students must:
- regularly attend lectures and practical classes;
- work systematically, consistently and actively in lectures and practical classes;
- make up for missed classes or unsatisfactory grades received in class;
- complete all assignments required by the lecturer to a satisfactory standard;
- complete tests and other independent work;
- adhere to the norms of academic behaviour and ethics.
The course "Foreign Economic Activity" involves learning and adhering to the principles of ethics and academic integrity, in particular, focusing on preventing plagiarism in any form: all works, reports, essays, abstracts and presentations must be original and authored, not overloaded with quotations, which must be accompanied by references to the original sources.  Violations of academic integrity include: academic plagiarism, self-plagiarism, fabrication, falsification, cheating, bribery, and biased assessment.

Recommended sources of information.
Basic literature:
1. Law of Ukraine "On Foreign Economic Activity": dated 16 April 1991, VVR, 1991, No. 956-XII, Art. 1 / Verkhovna Rada of Ukraine. – Official publication. – Kyiv: Parliamentary Publishing House, 1991. 
2. On the Procedure for Settlements in Foreign Currency: Law of Ukraine, 23.09.94 No. 185/94-VR, with amendments and additions 
3. On investment activity: Law of Ukraine, 18.09.91 No. 1560-XP, as amended and supplemented. 
4. On the regulation of document flow in foreign economic activity transactions in terms of confirming the right of an enterprise to receive export VAT refunds: Letter of the State Tax Administration of Ukraine, 29 June 2007 No. 273/4/16-1110. 
5. Regarding settlements in foreign currency: Letter from the National Bank of Ukraine, 12 March 2002 No. 13-111/948-1807. 
6. Regarding customs and tariff regulation: Letter from the State Customs Service of Ukraine, 27 June 2008 No. 3/14-3227-EP. 
7. Regarding the procedure for concluding agreements (contracts) by entities engaged in foreign economic activity to which a special sanction applies – individual licensing regime: Letter from the Ministry of Economy and European Integration, 9 January 2002, No. 49-21/39. 
8. Regarding clarifications on the conclusion of foreign economic agreements: Letter from the Ministry of Justice of Ukraine, 17 July 2008 No. 21-41-864. 8. On currency and currency transactions: Law of Ukraine dated 28 April 2020 No. 2473-VIII
9. Hrebenyk O. P. Fundamentals of Foreign Economic Activity: Textbook. – 5th ed., revised and supplemented; University of the State Fiscal Service of Ukraine. Irpin: 2019. 410 p. URL: http://ir.nusta.edu.ua/jspui/bitstream/doc/4007/1/2830_IR.pdf 
10. Dunska A.R. Foreign Economic Activity: Theory and Practice. Study Guide./ A.R. Dunska. – K. Kondor, 2013. – 688 p. 
11. Dakhno I.I., Aliyeva-Baranovskaya V.M. Foreign Economic Activity-3: Textbook. Edited by I.I. Dakhno, Doctor of Economics, Professor. Kyiv: Centre for Educational Literature, 2018. 356 p. 
12. Krupovich, S. E. Foreign Economic Activity of Enterprises: Textbook. Ternopil: TNTU, 2017. 137 p. URL: http://elartu.tntu.edu.ua/bitstream/lib/22432/5/Navch_Posibnyk-ZED_2017.pdf 
13. Foreign Economic Activity: Enterprise-Region: Textbook. 6th ed., revised and expanded. Edited by Yu. G. Kozak. Kyiv: Centre for Educational Literature, 2016. 290 p. 
14. Maslak O.O. Accounting and analysis of foreign economic activity: Textbook. L.: Novyi Svit, 2016. 352 p. 
15. Bestuzheva S.V. International Economic Activity of Ukraine: Textbook. Kharkiv: KhNEU, 2010. 212 p. 
16. Chernyshova L.O. Foreign Economic Activity of Enterprises: Practical Guide. Kharkiv: Fort Publishing House, 2017. 238 p. URL: http://elib.hduht.edu.ua/bitstream/123456789/1880/1/1_%D0%9D%D0%B0%D0%B2_%D0%BF%D0%BE%D1%81 _%D0%97%D0%95%D0%94%D0%9F_%D0%BF%D1%80%D0%B0%D0%BA%D1%82%D0%B8%D0%BA%D1%83%D0 %BC.pdf
Supplementary literature:
1. Nosach L.L., Velychko K.Yu., Pechenka O.I., Zosimova Zh.S. International credit, settlement and currency transactions: a study guide. Kharkiv: Fort Publishing House, 2016. 240 p. 
2. Maslak O.O. Accounting and analysis of foreign economic activity: textbook. Lviv: Novyi Svit. 2016. 352 p. 
3. Reshetnikova O.V., Danilenko V.I., Borovyk T.V. Logistical Infrastructure as a Strategic Element in the Development of Foreign Economic Activity of Domestic Enterprises. Economic, organisational and legal mechanisms for supporting and developing entrepreneurship: collective monograph; edited by O.V. Kalashnik, H.Z. Makhmudova, I.O. Yasnolob. Poltava: Astray Publishing House, 2020. Pp. 143-150. URL: http://dspace.pdaa.edu.ua:8080/handle/123456789/10777
4. Reshetnikova O.V., Danilenko V.I., Borovyk T.V. Logistics as a factor in ensuring Ukraine's competitiveness in the field of foreign economic activity. Bulletin of the I.I. Mechnikov Odessa National University. 2021. Vol. 26. Issue 1(86). pp. 66-72 URL: http://dspace.pdaa.edu.ua:8080/handle/123456789/10776 
5. Danylenko V.I., Dyadik T.V., Borovyk T.V. International practice of ensuring the competitiveness of the agricultural sector of the economy. Theory and practice of business management: collective monograph. Edited by T.V. Grynyko. Dnipro: Publisher Bila K.O. 2020. Pp. 305-314. URL: http://confcontact.com/2020-kolektyvnamonographiya/kolektyvna_monographiya_2020__maket.pdf#page=305 
6. Podtserkovny O.P. Legal regulation of foreign economic activity: teaching manual (for full-time and part-time students). Odessa: NU "OYA", 2021. 166 p. 
7. Kakhovych O.O., Kakhovych Y.O. Motives for creating joint ventures as a type of foreign economic activity. URL: http://biblio.umsf.dp.ua/jspui/bitstream/123456789/2459/1/11kakhovich.pdf. 11. Nazarov N.K., Barannik I.O. Economic security of the export-import potential of an enterprise. Business-Inform. 2019. No. 5. P. 142-149. URL: http://nbuv.gov.ua/UJRN/binf_2019_5_23.
Internet information resources: 
1. Regulatory and legal framework of Ukraine URL: http://zakon3.rada.gov.ua/ 
2. Customs Code of Ukraine: Law of Ukraine dated 13 March 2012 No. 4495-VI (current version dated 15 May 2021) URL: https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/4495-17 
3. Official website of Incoterms 2020 in Ukraine. URL: https://incoterms2020.com.ua/terms
4. Official website of the Ministry of Economic Development, Trade and Agriculture of Ukraine URL: www.me.gov.ua 
5. Official website of the National Bank of Ukraine URL: www.bank.gov.ua 
6. Official website of the State Statistics Service of Ukraine URL: www.ukrstat.gov.ua
7. Official website of the State Fiscal Service of Ukraine http://sfs.gov.ua/ 
8. Official website of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Ukraine. URL: http://www.mfa.gov.ua/mfa/ua; 
9. Official website of the Ministry of Infrastructure of Ukraine. URL: http://www.mtu.gov.ua/;
10. Official website of the Ukrainian Chamber of Commerce and Industry. URL: http://www.ucci.org.ua/ua/main.html;
11. Official website of the State Export Control Service of Ukraine. URL: http://www.dsecu.gov.ua
12. Official website of the International Chamber of Commerce. URL: http://www.iccwbo.org/; 
13. Official website of the European Union. URL: http:// www.europa.eu.int
14. On currency and currency transactions: Law of Ukraine No. 2473-VIII dated 28 April 2020. URL: https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/2473-19#Text.
15. On the Customs Tariff of Ukraine: Law of Ukraine No. 674-IX of 6 April 2020. URL: https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/674-20#Text
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